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ELECTRONICALLY FILED
11/26/2025 9:15 AM

Kym Foster, County Clerk
Grays Harbor County, WA
Case Number: 25-2-00678-14

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
FOR THE COUNTY OF GRAYS HARBOR

DEBORAH CERKEZOGLL, on her own
behalf and on behall of others similarly
situated,

Case No,. 25-2-00678-14

Plaintiff. CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

JURY TRIAL DEMANDLED

Vs,

SLED DISTRIBUTION, LLC. d/b/a MY
MEDIC,

Pefendant,

Plaintifi Deborah Cerkezoglu, on her own behalf and on behalf of others similarly situated,
on information and belief except to her own expericnces and matiers of public record, complains
of Defendant SLED Distribution, LLC, d/b/a My Medic (“SLED") as follows:

1. INTRODUCTION

l. In 1998, to protect Washington consumers from the annoyance and harassment
caused by the burgeoning spam email industry, the Washington State Legisluture enacted the
Commercial Electronic Mail Act (CEMA), codified at chapter 190 of titie 19 of the Revised Code
ol Washington (RCW),

2, Among other things, CEMA prohibits transmitting a commercial email with “false
or misleading information in the subject line™ to the email address of a Washington resident, RCW

19.190.020(1)(b).
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3 Defendant SLED engages in the precise activity which CEMA prohibits.

4. SLED spams Washington consumers, including Plaintiff, with commercial emails
whose subject lines employ various tactics to create a false sense of urpeney in consumers’
minds and ultimately, from consumers’ walleis:

3 This false urgency wastes consumers’ time by enticing them 1o engage with the
defendant's marketing efforts for fear of missing out. It also floods consumers’ email inboxes with
repeated false notifications that the time o act—i.e. purchase —s short.

6. And through this deceptive time-sensitivity, SLED falsely narrows the ficld—
steering consumers away from shopping for better deals—1o its own products and services which
niust be purchased now.

7. Plainufl’ chullenges the defendant’s harassment of Washington consumers with
deceptive marketing [or violations of the Commercial Flectronic Mail Act (RCW 19.190.020) and
the Consumer Protection Act (RCW 19.86.020) lor injuries caused, additionally seeking injunctive
reliefagainst such violations in the future,

il JURISDICTION AND VENUE

8, The Cowrt has jurisdiction of this case under RCW 2.08.010,

9. Venue is proper in Grays Harbor County under RCW 4.12.020(3) because
Plaintiff's cause of action, orsome part thereof, arase in Grays Harbor County,

III.  PARTIES

10, Plamtiff Deborah Cerkezoglu is a resident of Grays Harbor County, Washington.

1. Defendant SLED Distribution, LLC, d/b/a My Medic. is a Delaware limited
liability company with its principal address at 120 North Redwood Road, Suite A. North Salt Lake,
U, 84054, und a registered agent-at ¢/o United States Corporation Agents, [nc., 131 Continenlal
Drive, Suite 305, Newark. DE. 19713 and another-ar Sled Investment Group, [LLC, 120 North
Redwood Road, Suite B. North Salt Lake, UT 84054,
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IV,  FACTUALALLEGATIONS

A. CEMA protects Washington consumers from deceptive spam emails.

12, The Supreme Court of Washington has made ¢lear: “[A]ll Internet users ... bear the
cost of deceptive spam,” State v, Heckel, 143 Wn. 2d 824, 835 (2001) (en banc),

13, In 1998, the Legislature found that the “volume of commercial electronic mail™ was
“growing.” generating an “increasing number of consumer complaits.” Laws of 1998, ch. 149,
§ 1.

14, While it’s been nearly three decades since CEMA's enactment, the problems caused
by unsolicited commercial cmail, Le: spam email. have grown exponentially,

15, The problems, however, are not limited to email content, Subject lines of emails are
framed to atlract consumers’ attention away from the spam barrage Lo a message that entices
consumers to click and, ultimately, purchase.

16.  In 2003, the United States Congress found that “[mjany senders of unsolicited
commercial electronic mail purposefully include misleading information in the messages’ subject
lines in order to induce the recipicnts to view the messages." 15 U.S.C. § 7701(a)(8).

17, In 2012, one study estimated that Americans bear “costs ol almost $20 billion
annually” due 1o unsolicited commercial emuil. Justin M. Rao & David H, Reiley, The Economics
of Spam, 26 J. of Econ. Perspectives 87, 88 (2012),

I8 Evenwhen bulk commercial email marketers are operating under color of consumer
consenl, the reality is that “[mjost privacy consent™ -especially under the “notice-and-choice™
approach predominant in the United States—"is a fiction,” Daniel J. Solove. Mwrky Consent: An
Approach to the Ficrions of Consenr in Privacy Law, 104 Boston Univ, L, Rev. 593. 596 (2024).

19, Consumess therelore routinely “consent”™ to receive {lurries of commercial emails
which they did not meaningfully request and in which they have no genuine mierest.

20, This includes emails sent 1o consumers from businesses with which they have no

prior relationship—by virtue of commercial data brokers and commereial data sharing agreements.

21, Smmply conductmg the routine affairs of daily life ofien exposes consumers to
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unanticipated and unwamed volumes of commercial email. “Nowadays, you need an email address
for everything Irom opening a bank aceount 1o gelting your dog’s nails trimmed, and .., [o]nee
you hand over your email address. companies oflen use it as-an all-access pass o your inbox:
Think of shopping websites that send account updates, deals, 'we miss you' messages. and holiday
promotions throughout the year, It's too much.”™ Kaitlyn Wells. Email Unsubscribe Services Don't
Really Work, N.Y. Times Wircentier (Aug. 19, 2024), hitps:/perma.ce/U8S6-RSRU/.

22, The Legislature presciently intended CEMA 10 “provide some immediate reliel™
for these problems by prohibiting among other things commercial emails that “contain untrue or
misleading mformation in the subject line,” Laws of 1998, ¢h, 149, § 1.

23, CEMA thereby protects Washington consumers against the “harms resulting from
deceptive commercial c-mails,” which “resemble the type of harms remedied by nuisance or fraud
actions,” Harbers v. Fddie Bauer, 1.1.C, 415 F, Supp. 3d 999, 1008 (W.D, Wash. 2019),

24, CEMA's “tuthfulness requirements” increase the costs of sending deceptive
commercidl emails and thereby reduce their volume. Heckel, 143 Wn, 2d at 836,

25, CEMA's “truthfulness requirements” thereby advance the statute’s aim of
protecting eonsumers. “from the problems associated with commercial bulk e-mail” while
facilitating commerce “by eliminating fraud and deception.” /o

26, CEMA “mean[s] exactly what it says™ in “broad™ but “patently clear™ language.
CEMA unambiguously prohibits “sending Washington residents commercial e-mails that
contain any false or misleading information in the subject lines of such c-mails.” ¢ ertification from
U.S. Dist. Cr, for W Dist. of Wash, in Brown v. Old Navy, LLC, 567 '3d 38, 44, 4647 (Wash.
2025),

27, CEMA's protections do not depend on whether any email was (really or fictively)
solicited by consumers, nor on whether consumers relied on any false or misleading statement
comained fn its subject line. See Harbers, 415 F, Supp. 3d at 1011,

28, The statute’s only coneern is Lo suppress false or misleading information in the

subject line of commercial emails. See Brown. 567 P.3d at 44 45,
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B. The subject lines of SLED’s marketing cmails make false time searcity claims,

29, One common way online marketers “manipulate consumer choice by mducing false
beliefs™ is to ereatea false sense ol urgency or to falsely claim that consumers' time to act is scarce.
Fed. Trade Comm'n, Bringing Dark Patrerny to Light 4 (2022), hups:/perma.cc/847M-EY69/: see
also UK. Competition & Mkis. Auth., Online Choice Architecture—How Digital Design Can
Harm Competition and Consumers 26 (2022), https:/perma.ce/V848-7TTVV/,

30.  The FTC has identified the “I'alse Limited Time Message” as one example of false
time scarcity claims. i shich the marketer ereates “pressure to buy immediately by saying the
ofter is good only for & limited time or that the deal ends soon—but without 4 deadline of with a
meanmngless deadline that just resets when reached.” Bringing Dark Patierns to Light. supra
para, 29, at 22,

31, “False or misleading scarcity ckums can change the behaviour of consumers.”
Online Choice Architecture. supra para. 29, at 27,

32, Representationsabout the tming and duration of sales, discounts, and other special
offers are [undamentally representations aboul prices, and such representalions matter o ordinary
consumers. See. e.g., luiliang Zhao e al., Impact of Pricing and Product Information an
Consumer Buyving Behavior with Consumer Satisfaction in « Mediating Rale, 12 Frontiers in
Psychology 720151 (2021), available at
https;//pme.nchi.nim.nih.gov/articles PMCR71 07534/pdffpsyg-12-720151 pdl.

33, False scurcity claims are psychologically ellective, As “considerable evidence”
SUZEEsts, “eonsumers reset o scarcity and divent their attention to inlormation where they might
miss opportumities.” Online Chotee Architecture, supra para. 29, at 26,

34, Invoking this time pressure achieves a seller’s aim W namow the field of
competitive products and deals, by “induc|ing] consumers to rely on heuristics (mental shorteuts),
like limiting foeus 10 u restricted set of attributes or deaiding based on habit,” /d

35, Undertime pressure. “consumers might take up an offer to minimise the uncertainty

of passing it up,” Id
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36.  False time scarcity claims thus harm consumers by manipulatively distorting their
decision-making to their detriment—and the seller s henefit.

37, Indeed, one 2019 study found that “customers who took timed deals rather than
waiting to see wider options ended up worse off than those who waited.” Jd. at 27,

38, False fime scarcity claims also harm market competition. Consumers learn to ignore
scarcity claims, "meaning (hat when a product [or offer] is truly scarce, the seller will not be able
to credibly communicate this information.™ /d.

39, These false time scarcity claims are a staple of the detendant’s email scheme to
compel consumers 10 purchase its products,

40.  SLED sells portable medical and first aid kits through its website, MyMedic.com,
It also sells wound training courses, medical supplics, survival gear, hiking equipment, and related
products on its website.

41, To advertise its products and encourage purchases from its website. SLED
frequently sends spam emails to consumers.

42, Urgent Spam Emails. Unfortunately for those recipients, ST.ED regulariy titles its
emails with urgent subjeet headings that do not reflect the true availability of the advertised deal,
Thas strategy Is demonstrated in the examples discussed below,

43. SLED has tailored its approach to fiL a variety of offers, including promotion
extepsions, In these examples, SLED sends consumers emails to advertise an ofler; promotion, or
sale. Then, it uses the subject fines of follow-up emails to present the promotional pricing as a
scarce or time-limited opportunity, This strategy commands consumers' attention and pressures
them to purchase lrom SLED's website: Finally, once the advertised deadline has passed, SLED
extends the promotion to a new end date.

. This misleading markeung strategy allows SLED 1o maximize sales during both the
initzal promotion, as well as the subsequent extension. While S1.1-1) may present thexe extensions
as though they are a lavor to-consumers, they are anything but. By deploying false time pressures

with surprise extensions, SLED compels consumers to purchase quickly while withholding terms
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Ihat consumers need-so they can make mformed buying decisions. A 25% off promotion from 2022
provides an apt example of the strategy at work.

45, First, SLED sends consumers an email advertising a new promotion. It did 50 on
January 12, 2022, inan cmail titled: “Flash Sale 25% Off The All New Recon[.]” The message
also provided the details of the promaotion, which offered 25%, off the Recon First Aid Kit product
on the My Medic website.

46, Forits next step, SLED uses the subject lines of its follow-up emails 10 assert false
time pressure on recipients. Such headlines urge consumers to purchase from SLED's website by
warning them that an offer is coming to an end.

47, SLED did so, regarding its discount on the Recon First Awd Kit, on January |6,
2022, in an email with the subject hine: “Hurry! Last Chanee To Get 25% OFF|[.]" In large red [ont
across the top of the message, SLED lurther wamed that the sale would end that night.

48.  Then, later thut same day, SLED transmitted another email emphasizing the offer’s
expiration, The fitle of the message wamed: “it's The Final Countdown! SALE ENDS
FTONIGHT].|”

49, However. January 16, 2022, was not the last chance lor consumers to purchase the
Item at the discounted price.

S0, Inthe Gnal stage of its scheme, SLED replaces the advertised deadline with the real
deadling, thereby extending the life of the promotion. For the Recon First Aid Kit discount, ST.ED
announced the extension on January 17, 2022, m an email titled: “MLK Extended Sale! Today
Only!™

51, So, one day after warning consumers that the sale was ending, SLED extended the
sale. thereby proving the falsity of the January 16, 2022, subject lines. Consumers in receipl of the
Junuary 16 emails were not atrisk o missing the discount beeause SLED did not end the promotion
on January 16, as advertised, The fulse conclusion of the 25% off promotion was simply a
markelimg strategy meant to compel consumers to purchase items from the delendant's website,

52.  InJunuary 2023, SLED repeated the pracess with a promotion offering 30% off its
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Boat Medic kit,

33, OnlJanuary 13. 2023, SLED wansmitted an email announcing the new sale with the
subject line: “Flash Sale ¢ 0% OIL' The Boat Medic!” Tn the emails to follow, SLED
emphasized that the 30% off opportunity was (leeting.

54, OnJanuary 15, 2023, SLED sent an email warning consumers about the end ol the
sale. The email’s headline stated: “30% OFF Flash Sale Fnds Tonight!” At the top of the body of
the email, inall capital letters, SLED emphasized, “SALE ENDS TONIGIHT[.]”

55, I'he January 15 subject line. however. was false. The sale did not end as SLED
warned in its cmail.

56.  SLED changed the end date ol the Boat Medic promaotion as conlirmed by i January
17,2023, email ttled; * & SALE EXTENDED!! & [.]" Despite the finality first touted by SLLD,
consumers had additional time to participate in the sale,

57, Within a matter of days, SLED deployced the strategy again. This time, with a 20%
off sale for ns “Ready First Aid Kits.”

58.  On Junuary 22, 2023, SLED cautioncd consumers that the speeial prieme would
end that night. The message was sent with the subject line: “20% OFF + 'REE Micromend ENDS
TONIGHIT!?

59, However, On January 23, SLED sent a message reflecting the actual end date of the
sale. The email was titled: “Sale EXTENDED!? () [.]” The warning sent on January 22, 2023, was
misleading because the reduced pricing was offered again on the very next day,

60.  Instead of sending consumers reliable facts. the lanuary 22, 2023, email simply
delivered deception.

61, By pelting consumers with such misinformation, SLED ensures that email
recipients lack the accurate details needed 1o make cducated buying decisions,

62, March 2023 provided a similar example regarding a product named “ZZIPS.” a
wound care related produet related to stitches:

63, OnMareh 17,2023, S1ED announced i sale on ZZIPS in an email with the subject

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AL DR PLLE
Page ¥ Chicaga limes 60611

TEUORT2 Z3 1500 « FAX 572263 1108
Suyusaborred com




~

Case 3:25-cv-06189 Document 1-1  Filed 12/31/25 Page 9 of 26

line: “ ¢ ZZIPS FLASH SALE 4 |.|" The email explained that the promotion was a Buy 2, Get
| free offer-and that 1t would run fram March 17 10 March 19,

64.  On the advertised end date, March 19, 2023, SLED cautioned consumers that the
offer was set to expire. An email sent on that date bore the subject lime: * 4 ZZIPS Sale ENDS
TONIGHT 4 |

65.  Unfortunately for consumers, the time pressure exerted in the March 19, 2023,
subject lme was fulse, The offer did not expire as advertised.

66.  The followmg day, March 20, 2023, SLED confirmed that the March 19 warning
was: maccurate. An email sent on that date and titled, “ZZIPS SATE EXTENDED!" finally
provided consumers with the actual end date for the promotion,

67.  Before the month was out, this deceptive practice was used again,

68, In late March 2023, SLED announced a “MyFAK Madness” promotion that
entailed 15% off its MyFAK kit (a line of First Aid kit products) and 4 free “BleedStop™ packets:
As usual, the defendant used its spum email campaign to: advertise the ofTer. communicate the
offer’s ending, pressure consumers o purchase from its website because the opportunity for
savings was coming to-an end, and then 10 announce the actual end date once the false expiration
had elapsed. The subject lines alone demonstrate the process:

a. 3/24/23 “MyFAK MADNESS STARTS NOW™
b. 3/25/23:* © The Clock Is Running @ []*

/

g
J

)
r

.

d. 3/

6/23: *“MyFAK MADNESS ENDS TONIGHT!!™
¢ “This Sale Is In OVERTIME!™

(3]

T2

9

69.  Consistent with its typical approach. SLED informed consumers about the
promotion. then spent the following days urging them to purchase merchandise by presenting the
opportunity as time scarce, However, the end date announced in the March 26 subject line was
false. The same offer was available the [ollowing day.

70.  Days later, SLED executed the same scheme with a Buy One, Get One Free offer

on its Med Pack items. The emails used to deceive consumers included the fallowing subject lines:
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a. 4/7/23: “FREE MED PACKS!"

b. 4/8/23: "Don't Miss FREE MED PACKS™

¢. 4/9/23: “Last Chance l'or FREE Med Packs!™
d. 4/10/23; "EXTENDED SALE!M

71. Clearly. April 9, 2023, was not the truc deadline for the ofter. The urgent warnings
that SLED sent consumers in the April 8 and April 9 subject lines needlessly pressured consumers
to act because the opportunity was still available on April 10.

72, November 2023 offers another example of SLED's deeeptive strategy in play,

73, OnNovember 23, 2023, SL.ED sent consumers an ematil with the title: "Hurry, Only
A Few Hours Leti!” The expiring promotion involved 30% off SLED’'s MyFAK kit. The body of
the email warned that it was consumers’ “last chance™ because the offer would end that night,

74, True to form, SLED did not end the ofler on the evening of November 23, 2023, as
confirmed by an email sent the following day.

75 On November 24, 2023, the offer was still available. In an email titled. “Time’s
Ticking! 30% O The MyFAK!” SLLED again warned that it was consumers’ “last chance” because
the “deal ends ronight.”

76. Thus, the opportunity for 30% off the MyFAK product did not end on November
23, While the email and subjecet line transmitted on that date were clear, SLED made the same
offer on November 24, 2023, Sled simply manufactured lalse time pressure to influence consumers
and drive their buying decisions,

77, Inearly 2024, SLED conducted the same deception in the context of a 30% off sale
on its “Bike & ‘Hike™ med packs. First, it announced the temporary price reduction, Next, it

communicated a clear timeframe during which the offer would be available. Then, SLED

continued the sale well beyond the advertised end date, as confirmed m the subject lincs of the

following emails:
A 2/29/24: 30% O All Our Bike & Hike Gear”
b 3/2/24: “Hiker Med Pack + More 30% Off This Weekend Only™
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. 3/3/24;%30% OII, Yes For Reals. This Weekend Only™
d. 3/13/24; “Shhh @ 30% Off Is Still Live!™

78, SLED could not have been clearer when it communicated the duration of the 30%
off offer. The March 3, 2024, subject line even offered consumers reassurance about SLED's
claims, stating they were “For Reals|,|” Even so, the March 13, 2024, email confirmed that the
30% off “Bike & Hike" med packs offer was still active, Despite the contrived time scarcity
presented by SLED, consumers had additional tme during which they could aceept SLED's offer,

79. Later in the month, SLED deployed its scheme again fora prometion offering three
“free” Blecdstop Packs for consumers who bought 1 MyFAK kit The ruse was conducted using
emails with the lollowing subject lines:

d. 3/29/24: “Get 3 Free BleedStop’s Today!™
3/30/24.* & Last Chance To Get 3 Free BleedStops & [.]"
¢ 4/2/24: “Extended Just For You! Don't Miss Qut!™

80, I'he false subject line ransmitted on March 30, 2024, is simply another exumple of
SLED’s misleading strategy: creating lalse time pressure meant to drive consumers Lo its website
and. ultimately, the checkout sercen.

8. InApril 2024, SLED continued to mislead consumers with a “Weekend Flash Sale”
on its "Superskin Med Pack Bundle.™

82, On Saturday, April 6, 2024, SLED sent un email with the subject Ime; “This
Weekend Only 25% OfF SuperSkin!"

83, ‘Then. on April 7, 2024. the defendant emphasized the impending deadline with an
email titled: “24 Hours Left l'or The Super Sale!”

84, However, the alleged *llash sale” might be better described as a slow burn becatse
it not end with the weekend. In fact, the offer was still active through the middle of the following
week.

85.  On Wednesday, April 10, 2024, SLED sent an email conlirming that the April 6

subject line was fulse. The April 10 message was titled: “Sale Fnds Tomorrow! 25% OFF
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SuperSkin!™

86, Thus, SLED miually used the April 6 subjeet line to spam consumers about the
sale’ short duration, In truth, however, the promotion wasn't limited to the weekend. SLED's own
April 10, 2024, email, stating that the sale would actually end on Thursday, confirmed that the
April 6 subject line was untrue, The false conelusion of the “flash sale™ was simply # marketing
strategy meant Lo compel consumers to purchase the defendant’s produets,

87.  Within days, SLED returned to its typical approach. communicating a false
deadlinc while advertismg 1 25% off sale.

88.  On April 14, 2024, Sled sent an email with the subjeet line: “FOR ONE HOUR
ONLY! THIS AFTERNOON!™ The onc-hour sale was advertised to begin al SPM EST.

89, By 5:35PM, SLED had changed the duration of the sale.

90.  An email sent at 5:55PM EDT extended the promotion in its title; “Your Wish
Granted, Sale Extended | Hour Only!"

91, So, in less than an hour, SLED ultered the terms of the 23% ofT promotion and
replaced the false deadline with the real one.

92, SLED continued to deceive consumers using false expiration dates and misleading
subject lines in April 2024, The following emalls demonstrate the strategy regarding u 15% off
offer for SLED's MyFAK Mini product:

a, 4/27/24:"Don’t Miss Out This Weekend Only, 15% OF™
b. 4/28/24: “Last Chance 15% OIf + FREE GIFT™

¢, 4/29724: “Den’t Be The One Thut Misses Out!”

d 4/30/24: “Friend. Extended Just For You!™

93, Asithe subject lines confirm, the weekend duration communicated to customers was
a falsehood. The opportunity continued through Tuesday of the following week. The April 27,
April 28, and April 29 emails demonstrate the frickery that so often plagues this retailer’s spam
campaigns.

94.  SLLD-also misled customers in the context of a “Deal of the Day" premotion in
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lute May 2024,

95, Iusent an-email on May 30, 2024, with a subjeet line identilying the product and
communicaling the short duration of the offer: * 7 Sidekick is 30% Off Today Only! 5 |J”

96, The defendant’s poimt couldn’t be clearcr: consumers should purchase the
discounted item immediately, because the promotion would end the very same day,

97.  Despite describing the offer as the Deal of the Day and presenting it with a day-
long duration, SLED made it available the next day.

98.  On May 31, 2024, SLED sent an email rendering the May 30 subject line
maccurate. The message was titled: * & 8 lHours Left & Sidekick 30% OFF!" So, in truth, the
deal was available to consumers on hoth May 30 and May 31,

99.  SLED used the same approach when it presented “The Recon Pro™ kit for a one-
day only 30% off promotion. The defendant sent the following subject lines to communicate the
sule and its terms Lo consumers:

a. 6/1/24:* & 30% OfT The Recon Today Only! @ L.]"
b. 6/1/24:* & 30% OFF You Don't Want To Miss This & ||
¢. 6/2/24:"Shhh & 30% Of The Recon Is Still Live!™

100. Again, SLED'S deception, as well as the advertised promotion, would |ast beyond
the deadline articulated Lo consumers. On June 1, 2024, S1 FD informed recipients that the discount
would be limited to a single day, only to extend the promotion on June 2, 2024. once the false
deadline had passed.

101, Misleading subject lines like those used on June | narrow consumers’ buying
decisions while ensuring these decisions are not informed with accurate facts ahout the availability
ol pricing.

102, Shortly therealter, SLED returned to consumers’ inboxes to warn them that its

Summer Sale would soon ¢nd, The defendant used the following emails while deploying its

scheme:

4. 6/15/24: “Summer Sale Ending Seon @& [.1°
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b. 6/16/24: “12 Hours Left For Massive Savings!”
. 6/17/24: “Sale Extended Today Only &3 [.]"

103, The June 17, 2024, email confirmed the falsity of the June 16, 2024, subject line,
SLED told consumers that they had mere hours to act on the offer, In truth, they had the entire next
day to decide whether (o participate m the promotion,

104,  Next. SLED continued its trend of pairing false deadlines with surprise extensions
durmg a promotion for its Recon kit. Titles used to execute the ruse include:

a. 7/11/24:* (@ This Weekend Only! 20% Off The Recon! @ [
. 7/14/24: “Lawt Chance o Save Big On The Recon! G4].|"
c. 7/1524:" & 24 Hours Only 20% Off The Recon +More & [.J7

105, The July 11 and July 14 subject lines urged consumers 1o buy fast lest they lose the
supposedly scarce opportunity to receive 20% ofT, However, the discount was available through
Monday, July 13, 2024.

106 Days later, the defendant pressured consumers with a sale on its Med Pack products
only to extend that sale as well. SLED used the following emails o implement its deceptive
strategy:

4. 7/18/24: “Specialized Packs 50% Off (R [.]"
b. 7/21/24:* & l.ast Chance To Save Big - 50% OfF | L.
¢ 7/22/24:" & Salc Extended - Limited Stock Left! & [.]”

107, SLED produced and leveruged a sense of urgency against consumers in its July 21
subjeet line. Then, it continued its deceptive trend and chunged the duration of the sale on July 22,

108. A promotion offering a2 20% discount for SLEDs MyFAK mmi also received &
false end date. The defendant advertised that the sale would be limited to the weekend but extended
it the following Monday. Subject lines used 10 deploy the deception include:

. 8/8/24: "This Weekend Only 20% Off The MyFAK Mini @3 [.]"
b, 8/11/24: *Last Chance To Get 20% OIT & [.]”
. 8/12/24: “Sule Extended - While Supplies Last! &3 [.]"
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109, True to form, the August 8 and August 11, 2024, subject lines presented a false
deadline.

0. The following month, SLED maintained its deceitful trend by fulsely advertising
the duration of & one-hour sale, as demonstrated in these subject fines:

4. 9/1/24:* & BIGGLST SALE OF THE YEAR OPENS (@ SPM EST & []”
b. 9/1/24: "GOLDEN HOUR 1S LIVE ONE HOUR ONLY & [.]"
¢, 9/1/24:"Golden Hour Extended | Hour Only (H[.]"

IT1 Even though the conclusion ol the promotion was clear when it was first
announced, SLED extended the sale beyond the advertised deadline.

112, SLED began 2025 by misleading customers as well, It pressured consumers with a
false one-duy deadline for a 30% discount on large first aid kits. Some of the emails used in the
campaign included the [ollowing subject lines:

a. 12/3124:% & 30% OFF TODAY ONLY & []”
b, 1/1/25: “Final Chance 30% The Best Kits! 8 [.]”

13, According to the explicit duration announced in the December 31, 2024, subject
line, the 30% discount should have ended in 2024, Instead of adhering to the term it communicated
to consumers. SLED moved the discount, a5 well as its misleading marketing strategy, into 2025,

114, In March 2025, SLED again pressured consunicrs by fulsely presenting a 20% off
promotion as u weekend sale while, in reality, it curried over to the tfollowing Monday. These
emails were sent to advertise the discount and false duration:

a. 3/23/25:* & 20% OFF This Weekend Only! & [.]”
b, 3/25725: “Final Hours: 20% OFF ENDS SOON | [

15, Then, m June 20235, SLLD fulsely represented that its Summer Sale would end on
Sunday, Junc 16, 2025, However, the sale’s true ending was luesday, June 18, 2025, as confirmed
by the following subject lines:

a. 6/15/25: “Summer Sale [s Ending Soon!"

b. 6/16/25:* & SUMMER SALL ENDS TONIGHT & B

G | P StRatss BORRELLIFLLC
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. 6/18/25: “GOING GOING GONE « []*

116.  While SLED clearly articulated, m no uncertam terms, that the sale opportumity
would end on June 16, 2025, consumers would be able to access the same promotion well into the
following week.

117, SLED, once again. misrepresented the length of a onc-hour sale in August 2025,
Consumers were told the sale opportunity would last one hour only, yet SLED doubled the
promotion’s duration as shown below:

a. %/31/25:" & FOR ONL HOUR ONLY! THIS AFTERNOON! & []"
b, 8/31/25; *25% OFF, For One Hour, Go Now! (J[.]"
¢, ®8/31/25:" & The Golden Hour Just Got Longer & [.]”

18, As these promotions demonstrate, SLED employs a strategy where it pressures
consumers to purchase products Irom its website by falsely representing the limited availability of
its offers, SLED repackages. repeats, and redeploys its deceptive strategy to the detrrment of
consumers, The nature of S1.ED's business compounds the malicious nature of this deeeption — it
sells first aid kits and related products and holds itself out as a vendor of lifesaving products that
help people. Its email marketing strategies are not based on offering legitimate discounts, but on
deceptive email strategies that pull consumers in 1o buy more when the promotions advertised were
not ending as communicated,

119, These and other examples of the commercial cmails that SLED has sent consumers
containing subject lines with false or misleading statements are attached to this Class Action
Complaint as Exhibit A.

C. SLED knows when it sends emails to Washington residents,

120. A sophisticated commercial enterprise, like SLED, which is ¢ngaged in persistent
marketing through mass email campaigns ncross the United States, has several ways of knowing
where the recipients ol its marketing emails are located, The means it employs are peculiarly within
its knowledge.

121, First, the sheer volume of email marketing that STED engages in put it on naotice
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that Wushington residents would receive its emails:

122, Second, SLED may obtain location mformation tied (0 email addresses when
consumers make purchases from SLED through digital platforms, including the My Medic
website, or otherwise self-report such information to SLED.

123. Third, SLED may obtain location information tied to email addresses by tracking
the 1P addresses of devices used to open its emails, which in wrm can be correlated 1o physical
location (as illustrated. for example. by the website https:/whatismyipaddress.com/),

24, Specitically, SLED likely uses Klaviyo to manage its email marketing campaigns.
This platform informs SLED where the recipients of its marketing emails are located using 1P
geolocation and other data extracted Irom tecipients’ inteructions with SLED, which Klaviyo
tracks in detail.' Thus, this platform should allow SLED to access a list of every cmail address that
was sent a marketing email. It should also allow SLED to determine who viewed the emails and
who clicked on any Tinks within them.

125, SLED is likely able to infer the general geographic loeation of recipients by stale
bascd on their 1P address at the time of email open or link click,

126, Fourth, SLED may obtain location information tied to cmail addresses by
purchasing consumer data Irom commercial data brokers such as Acxiom, Oracle, and Equifax,
which sell access 1o databases linking email addresses to physical locations, among other
identifiers,

127, Fifth, SLED may obtain location information tied to email addresses by using
“identity resolution™ services offered by companies such us LiveRamp, which can connect
consumers’ cmail addresses to their physical locations, among other identifiers,

128, Sixth, SLED may obtain mformation that the recipients of'its marketing emails are

Washington residents because that information is available, upon request, from the registrant of

" See “Understanding when and how Klavive sets a profile’s location,” Klaviyo (July 7, 2025) (deseribing “how a
profile’s location und rimezone information are set and updated”), hups:/help klayvivo.com/he/en-
us/irticles 1 15005073907/; “Understanding profiles in Klaviyo,” Klavivo (Aug, 5, 2025) (“Eachiindividual privfile

features an activity log to eaplure a timeline of their intergctions with vour business,” including receiving emails,
opening emuils, and clicking links within emails.), htipss/help.klavivo.com/heen-us/articley/ | 1500524 7088/
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the Internet domain names contained o the recipients” email addresses, See RCW 19.190,020(2).
129. It is thus-highly probable that a seller with the size and sophistication ol SLED
employs not just one but several means ol tymg consumers” emal addresses 10 thewr physical

locations, at least at the state level.

D, SLED violated Plaintiff*s right under CEMA to be free from deceptive
commercial emails.

130.  SLED has spammed Plaintiff with commercial cmails whose subject lines contain
lalse or misleading statements in violation of her right to be free from such annoyance and
harassment under CEMA,

131, Plaintiff received a number of the email promotions described above n Section B,
meluding the July 21, 2024, email titled: = & Last Chance To Save Big -50% O | [1™ and the
September 1, 2024, email titled: "GOLDEN HOUR IS LIVE ONE HOUR ONLY & L]”

132, These emails were false or misleading in violation of CEMA, for misrepresenting
the timing of the deals, us deseribed herein.

133, Thesc emails contained false statements of fact as 1o the “duration or availability ol
a promotion.” Brawn, 567 P3d-at 47,

Vv, CLASS ALLEGATIONS
134, Plaintitl brings this action under Civil Rule 23 on behalf of the following putative

class ("Class™):
Al Washington citizens holding an email address to which
Defendant sent or caused 10 be sent any email hsted in Exhibit A
during the Class Period,

135, Excluded from this definttion of the Class are Defendant’s officers, directors, and
employees: Defendant’s parents, subsidiarics, affiliates, and any entity in which Defendant has a
controlling interest; undersigned counsel tor Plaintifls und all judges and court stafl to whom this
action may be assigned, as well as their immediate family members,

136,  The Class Period extends from the date four years before this Class Action

Complaint is filed to the date a cluss certification order 15 entered in this action.
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137.  Plaintiff reserves the right to amend the Class definition as discovery reveals
additional emails containing talse or misleading information in the subject line that Defendant sent
or caused to be sent during the Class Period to email addresses held by Washington residents.

38 The Class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable because the
Class is estimated to minimally contain thousands of members,

139, There are questions of law or fact common to the class, including without limitation
whether Defendant sent commercial emails contaming false or misleadmg information in the
subject line: whether Defendant sent such emails 10 email addresses it knew or had to reason to
know were held by Washington residents; whether Defendant's conduct violated CEMA; whether
Defendant’s violation of CEMA constituted a per se violation of the Consumer Protection Act,
RCW 19,86.020 (CPA); and whether Defendant should be enjoined from such conduet,

140, Plainufs claims are typical of the Class's hecuuse, among other reasons, Plainti (T
and Class members share the same statutory rights-under CEMA and the CPA, which Defendant
viglated in the same way by the uniform false or misleading marketing messages it sent to all
putative members.

I41. Plamtff will fairly and adequately proteet the Class’s interests because, among
other reasons; Plainuff shares the Cluss’s interest in avoiding unfawful false or misleading
marketing; has no interest adverse (o the Class; and has retained competent counsel extensively
expericnced in consumer protection and class action litigation.

142.  Defendant has acted on grounds generally applicable to the Class. in that, among
other ways. it engaged m the uniform conduet of sending uniform commercial emails to Plamtff
and the Cluss, which violate CEMA and the CPA in the same way, and from which it may be
enjoined as to PlaintifTand all Class members, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relict’
with respect 1o the Class as a whole,

143, The questions ol law or fact common to the members of the Class predomimate over

-any questions alfecting only individual members. in that, among other ways. Defendant has

violated their nghts under the same laws by the same conduct, and the only matters for individual
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determination are the number of false or mislcading emails received by cach Class member and
that Class member’s resulting damages.

44, A class action 1% superior to other availuble methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of the controversy because, among other reasons, the elaims at issue may be too small
to justify individual litigation and management of this action as 4 class presents no special
dilTiculties,

VI.  CLAIMS TO RELIEF
Violation of the Commercial Electronie Mail Act, RCW 19.190.020

{45, Plaintill meorporates and realleges paragraphs 1-133 above,

146, CEMA provides that “[n]o person may initiate the transmission, conspire with
another to. initiate the transmission, or assist the transmission, of 4 commercial electronic mail
message ... 10 an eleetronic mail address that the sender knows. or has reason to know. is held by
u Washington resident that ... [eJontains false or misleading information in the subject line,™
RCW 19.190,020(1 )(b).

147, Defendant is-a “person” within the meaning of CEMA. RCW 19,190,010(11),

148, Defendant initiated the transmission. conspired with another to initiste the
transmission. or assisted the transition of “commercial electronic mail messages” within the
meaning of CEMA. RCW 19.190.010(2),

149, Defendant initiated the transmission, conspired with another to itiate the
transmission, or assisted the transmission of such messages 10 electronic mail ‘addresses that
Detendant knew, or had reason to know, were held by Washington residents, mcluding because
Detfendant knew that Plaintiff and putative members were Washington residents as such
“information is available, upon request, from the registrant of the internet domain name contained
in the recipient’s electronic mail address.” RCW 19.190,020(b)(2).

150.  Defendant initiated the transmission, conspired with another Lo initiate the

transmission, or assisted the wransmission of such messages that contined false or misleading
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information in the subject line, as described herein, in violation of CEMA. RCW 19.1 90.020( 1 )(b).
151, Tor Defendant’s violation of CEMA. PlaintilT s entitled to all available reliel,
including an injunction against further violations.

Second Claim to Relief

Violation of the Consumer Protection Act, RCW 19.86.020

152. Plaintifl incorporates and realleges paragraphs 1-133 above.

153, The CPA provides that “[u|nfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive
acty or practices in the conduct of any trade or commerce are hereby declared unlawful.”
RCW 19.86.020.

154:  Aviolation of CEMA is a per se violation of the CPA. RCW 19,190,030,

135, Aviolation of CEMA establishes all the elements necessary to bring a private action
under the CPA. Wright v. Lyfi. 189'Wri, 2d 718 (2017).

156,  CEMA provides that “[nfo person may initiate the: transmission, conspire with
another (o initiate the transmission, or assist the transmission. of a commercial electronic mail
message .., 1o an electronic mail address that the sender knows, or has reason to know, is held by
a Washington resident that ... [cJontains fulse or misleading information in the subject line.”
ROW 19.190.020(1)(b),

157, Defendant isa “person” within the meaning of CEMA. RCW 19.190.010(11 ).

158, Defendant initiated the transmission, conspired with another to initate the
transmission, or assisted the tansition of “commercial electronic muil messages™ within the
meamng of CEMA, RCW 19.190.010(2).

159, Defendant initiated the transmission; conspired with another to initiate the
transmission, or assisted the transmission of such messages to clectronic mail addresses that
Defendant knew, or had reason to know, were held by Washington residents,

160, Detendant initiated the transmission, conspired with another to initiste the
transmission. or assisted the transmission of such messages that comtained false or misleading

information in the subject line, as deseribed herein, in violation of CEMA. RCW 19.190,020( 1 )(b).
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161, For Defendant’s violation of the CPA. Plaintift and putative members are entitled
to an imunction agamst further violations: the greater of Plamuf]”s actual damages or liquidated
damages ol $500 per-violation. trebled; and costs of the suit, mcluding a reasonable attormey’'s fec.

VII.  JURY DEMAND

162.  Plamtiff will demand a jury trial by separate document in accordance with Local
Civil Rule 38(b).

VIII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Plamti{1"asks that the Court:

Al Certify the proposed Class, appomt Plaintiff as Class representative, and appoint
undersigned counsel as Class counsel;

B, Enter a judgment in Plaintiff’s and the Class™s lavor permanently enjoining
Delendant from the unlawtul conduct alleged;

C. Enter a judgment in Plaintift”s and the Class’s favor awarding actual or liquidated
damages, trebled, according to proof:

D, Award Plantiff's costs ol suit. including reasonable uttorneys® fecs; and

E Order such lurther relief the Court finds appropriate.

[Counsel signature block to follow on next page. |
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